
ZONING CHANGE REVIEW SHEET 
 
CASE NUMBER: C14H-2011-0002 HLC DATE:  August 22, 2011 
    September 24, 2011 
    October 24, 2011 
    November 14, 2011  
    September 22, 2014  
 PC DATE:  October 28, 2014 
     
APPLICANT:  City of Austin Historic Landmark Commission 
 
HISTORIC NAME:  Routon-Alvarez-Lopez House 
 
WATERSHED:  Waller Creek 
 
ADDRESS OF PROPOSED ZONING CHANGE:  809 E. 9th Street 
 
ZONING FROM:  SF-3-NCCD-NP to SF-3-H-NCCD-NP 
 
SUMMARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the  proposed zoning change 
from family residence, neighborhood conservation, neighborhood plan (SF-3-NCCD-NP) 
combining district to family residence, neighborhood conservation, neighborhood plan – 
Historic Landmark (SF-3-H-NCCD-NP) combining district zoning. 
 
QUALIFICATIONS FOR LANDMARK DESIGNATION: 
The ca. 1914 house is an excellent (although fire-damaged) example of early 20th century 
residential architecture with a wing-and-gable configuration and canted front gable, and is 
associated with East Austin Hispanic families, primarily the family of Jose and Carlotta 
Alvarez and the family of Sabas and Elena Lopez, who operated the most successful 
Hispanic-owned drug store in Austin for over 20 years. 
 
HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION ACTION:  August 22, 2011:  Initiated a historic 
zoning case upon staff’s recommendation.  September 24, 2011:  Postponed to October 24, 
2011 at staff’s request.  October 24, 2011:  Postponed to November 14, 2011 at staff’s 
request.  November 14, 2012:  Recommended the proposed zoning change from SF-3-NCCD-
NP to SF-3-H-NCCD-NP.  September 22, 2014:  Recommended the proposed zoning change 
from SF-3-NCCD-NP to SF-3-H-NCCD-NP for the property’s significance in the areas of 
architecture and historical significance.  Vote: 5-0 (Limbacher and Wolfenden-Guidry ill). 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION:  Recommended the proposed zoning change from SF-
3-NCCD-NP to SF-3-H-NCCD-NP.  Vote: 8-0 (Roark absent). 
 
DEPARTMENT COMMENTS:  The house is listed in the East Austin Survey (1980) 
CITY COUNCIL DATE:  December 11, 2014  ACTION: 
 
ORDINANCE READINGS: 1ST  2ND 3RD    ORDINANCE NUMBER: 
 
CASE MANAGER:  Steve Sadowsky     PHONE:  974-6454 
 
NEIGHBORHOOD ORGANIZATION:  Organization of Central East Austin Neighborhoods 
 
BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATION: 
 



 
Architecture:  
One-story hipped-roof wing-and-clipped front gable frame house with a partial-width shed-
roofed independent porch on turned wood posts; stick-style wood ornamentation at the 
canted bays of the projecting front gable; wood-framed 3-light casement windows.  The 
house has a partially-enclosed rectangular-plan rear porch on the southwest corner.  There 
is significant fire damage to the enclosed portion of the rear porch, and possibly to the rear 
of the house. 
Historical Associations: 
The address first appears in the 1918 city directory, but the house is listed as vacant. Deed 
records reflect that the property was purchased in 1914 by Ben Walker, a freight transfer 
agent, from Sarah Robertson, who with her husband had purchased a large section of what 
is now referred to as Robertson Hill, east of I-35.  The house was built in the summer of 
1914, according to the mechanic’s lien executed by Ben Walker to O.L. Albright and the 
Becker Lumber Company in May, 1914.  The lien was released in August, 1914.  Ben 
Walker never lived in this house; he and his family lived at 505 San Jacinto Street in 
downtown Austin.  The first known occupants of the house were renters: John P. Routon, a 
young bicycle repairman, and his extended family, in the early 1920s.  Ben Walker sold the 
property in 1923 to Benjamin Gonzales, a waiter at the Bon Ton Café on Congress Avenue, 
and his wife Hermelinda; they are listed in the 1924 city directory.  Ben Gonzales sold the 
house back to Ben Walker in May, 1927, and Walker sold the property in June, 1927 to Jose 
(Joe) L. Alvarez and his wife Carlotta (Charlotte), who lived here with their 5 daughters for 
20 years.  Joe Alvarez was a Mexican-born truck driver for Cabaniss Furniture Company; 
after he passed away in 1951, Charlotte lived here for another few years.  Sabas and Helen 
Lopez purchased the house from Mrs. Alvarez in 1954, and were the last owners and 
occupants. 
Sabas Lopez operated Lopez Drug Store at 1008 E. 6th Street, a business founded by his 
father, Guillermo (Willie) Lopez, in the mid-1940s.  The Lopez family had owned the ca. 
1898 stone building on E. 6th Street (which still stands, although highly modified) since the 
mid-1930s, when Willie and Margarita Lopez operated a Mexican curio store in their home 
there.  Around 1945, Willie Lopez changed his business from Mexican curios to a pharmacy.  
He was the third (and longest-running) Mexican-owned drug store in Austin.  Prior to the 
establishment of the Lopez Drug Store in E. 6th Street, there were two other Mexican-
owned drug stores in Austin.  The first was operated by Juan G. Perales, who in 1920, was 
a clerk for T.E. Odiorne, who operated Brown & Odiorne, a drug store on Congress Avenue.  
Juan and Basilica Perales lived at 121½ Congress Avenue, where they opened a drug store 
by 1922.  By 1924, Perales had moved his business to 1302 E. 6th Street, and by 1927, his 
daughter, Juanita Perales, had the Sonora Drug Store at the same address.  By 1929, the 
Sonora Drug Store was no longer in business; 1302 E. 6th Street is listed as the home of 
Basilica and Juanita Perales, but they had no business listing.  The second Mexican-owned 
drug store in Austin was operated by Ignacio Gamboa, who had a drug store at 1003 E. 6th 
Street in 1937.  Gamboa is not listed in the 1935 city directory.  By 1939, Gamboa had 
moved his home and business to 2300 E. 7th Street, but he was not listed in the 1940 
directory, and the building at 2300 E. 7th Street was the home of Hal L. Ramsey, who 
operated a laundry in the building.  There were no other Mexican-owned drug stores in 
Austin until Guillermo Lopez opened the Lopez Drug Store at 1008 E. 6th Street around 
1945.  Sabas Lopez initially worked as a clerk in his father Guillermo’s drug store, then 
inherited the business, which he ran until 1968, when he retired.  The extended Lopez 
family lived on the drug store premises until Sabas and Helen Lopez moved into this house 
around 1955.   Sabas Lopez passed away in 1976; Helen and her daughter Maryhelen 
continued to live on the property. 
PARCEL NO.:  02060503080000 
 



 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  The East 23 feet of Lot 16 and the West 34 feet of Lot 17, Outlot 
1, Division B, South part of the S & L.M. Robertson Subdivision. 
  
ESTIMATED ANNUAL TAX ABATEMENT: $581 (owner-occupied); city portion: $288. 
 
APPRAISED VALUE:  $105,413 
 
PRESENT USE:  Vacant 
 
CONDITION:  Fair 
 
PRESENT OWNERS:   
Elena Lopez, Mary Helen Lopez, and Carmen Castro 
c/o Mary Helen Lopez 
1012 Catalpa Street 
Austin, Texas 78702 
 
DATE BUILT:  ca. 1914 
 
ALTERATIONS/ADDITIONS:  The house has been damaged by a fire to the back porch.  
The front of the house appears to be undamaged. 
 
ORIGINAL OWNER(S):  Ben Walker (1914) 
 
OTHER HISTORICAL DESIGNATIONS:   None. 
 
STAFF NOTE: 
This case was recommended by the Historic Landmark Commission in 2011; the owner was 
pursuing work on the house, and the case was put on hold to allow for the work to be done.  
The owner has not been able to complete the proposed work on the house, and the 
Guadalupe Neighborhood Development Corporation has been authorized by the owner to 
continue the historic zoning case and to complete the work to make the house inhabitable 
once again. 
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809 E. 9th Street 
ca. 1917 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 
OCCUPANCY HISTORY 

809 E. 9th Street 
 
City Directory Research, Austin History Center 
By City Historic Preservation Office 
May, 2011 
 
 
1992  Elena Lopez, owner 
  Retired 
  Rear: Vacant 
 
1985-86 Elena Lopez, owner 
  Retired 
  Rear: Maryhelen Lopez, renter 
   Clerk, Brackenridge Hospital 
 
1981  Helen Lopez, owner 
  Retired 
  Rear: Vacant 
 
1977  Sabas C. and Helen E. Lopez, owners 
  Retired 
  Rear: Vacant 
 
1973  Sabas C. and Helen E. Lopez, owners 
  Retired 
  Rear: Ester Barron, renter 
   No occupation listed 
 
1969  Sabas C. and Helen Lopez, owners 

Proprietor, Lopez Drug Store, 1008 E. 6th Street. 
Rear: Frutosa Jimenez, renter 
 No occupation listed 

 
1965  Sabas C. and Helen Lopez, owners 

Proprietor, Lopez Drug Store, 1008 E. 6th Street. 
Rear: Joe Ramirez, renter 
 Helper, Calcasieu Lumber Company 

 
1961  Sabas C. and Helen Lopez, owners 

Proprietor, Lopez Drug Store, 1008 E. 6th Street. 
Rear: Jose E. and Natividad Tovar, renters 
 Employed by L. East Produce Company. 

 
1957  Sabas C. and Helen Lopez, owners 

Proprietor, Lopez Drug Store, 1008 E. 6th Street. 
 
1953  Carlotta Alvarez, owner 
  Widow, Joe Alvarez 

No occupation listed 
NOTE:  Sabas and Elena Lopez lived at 1008 E. 6th Street, their drug store. 

 
1949  Jose L. and Carlotte Alvarez, owners 
  Warehouseman 
 
1947  Jose L. and Charlotte Alvarez, owners 
  Chauffeur, Cabaniss Furniture Company, 204-06 E. 6th Street. 
 
 



 
1944-45 Jose L. and Charlotte Alvarez, owners 
  Chauffeur, Cabaniss Furniture Company, 204-06 E. 6th Street. 
 
1942  Jose L. and Charlotte Alvarez, owners 
  Driver, Cabaniss Furniture Company, 204-06 E. 6th Street. 
 
1939  Jose L. and Charlotte Alvarez, owners 
  Driver, Cabaniss Furniture Company, 204-06 E. 6th Street. 
 
1937  Jose L. and Charlotte Alvarez, owners 
  Truck driver, Cabaniss Furniture Company, 204-06 E. 6th Street. 
 
1935  Jose L. and Charlotte Alvarez (not listed as owners) 
  Truck driver, Cabaniss Furniture Company, 204-06 E. 6th Street. 
 
1932-33 Jose L. and Charlotte Alvarez, renters 
  Truck driver, Cabaniss Furniture Company, 204-06 E. 6th Street. 
 
1930-31 Jose L. and Charlotte Alvarez, renters 
  Driver, Cabaniss Furniture Company, 204-06 E. 6th Street. 
 
1929  Jose L. and Charlotte Alvarez, renters 
  Driver, Cabaniss Furniture Company, 208-10 E. 6th Street. 
 
1927  Louis and Hytnef Barsera, renters 
  Painter 

NOTE:  Jose and Charlotte Alvarez are listed as living at 804 E. 9th Street; he was a 
porter for Cabaniss Furniture Company, 208-10 E. 6th Street. 

 
1924  Benjamin and Hermelinda Gonzales, renters 
  Waiter, Bon Ton Café, 609 Congress Avenue 
 
1922  John P. and Stella Routon, renters 
  Repairman, G&M Cycle Company, bicycles, 105 W. 7th Street. 
 
1920  John P. Routon, renter 
  Repairman, G&M Cycle Company, bicycles, 105 W. 7th Street. 
 
1918  Vacant 
 
1916  The address is not listed in the directory. 
   
BIOGRAPHICAL NOTES: 
John P. Routon (ca. 1920-ca. 1923) 
John P. Routon appears in the 1920 U.S. Census report at this address.  He was 25, a native of Texas, 
and unmarried.  He lived in this house with his sister, Mattie Routon, and three nephews.  John P. Routon 
is listed as a bicycle repairman. 
 



 

 
Death notice of John P. Routon 
Austin American, May 21, 1932 

 

 
Funeral notice for John P. Routon 
Austin Statesman, May 21, 1932 

 
 
Jose and Charlotte Alvarez (ca. 1928-ca. 1955) 
Jose (Joe) and Charlotte Alvarez, and their 5 daughters appear in the 1930 U.S. Census report at this 
address.  The report states that the house was worth $2,500, and was owned by the Alvarez family.  Both 
Joe and Charlotte Alvarez had been born in Mexico; he was then 39, she was 37.  All of their children had 
been born in Texas.  Joe Alvarez is listed as a truck driver for a furniture company.  He died in Austin in 
1951; Charlotte passed away in 1981. 
 



 

 

 
Obituary of Joe Alvarez 

Austin American, March 6, 1951 
 

 
Funeral notice for Carlotta (Charlotte) Alvarez 

Austin American-Statesman, April 1, 1981 
 

 
Sabas and Helen Lopez (ca. 1955- ) 
Sabas Lopez is shown in the 1920 U.S. Census as the 10-year old son of Willie and Margarita Lopez, 
who lived on Medina Street in Austin.  Sabas Lopez was born in Texas, as had his next older sibling, 11-
year old Maria Lopez.  The two older Lopez children had been born in Mexico as had Willie and 
Margarita.  Willie Lopez was a laborer; his oldest son, Pedro was a tailor, and his second-oldest son John 
was a grocery salesman.  He is listed as Guillermo Lopez in city directories from 1935 on; he and 
Margarita opened a Mexican curio store at 1008 E. 6th Street, and later had a pharmacy there; Sabas 
inherited the business.  
 

 
Death notice of Sabas Lopez 

Austin American-Statesman, January 6, 1976 
 



 

 
The Lopez family’s Mexican curio shop and later drug store were located in this ca. 1898 building at 1008 
E. 6th Street.  Sabas and Helen Lopez lived here before moving to the house on 9th Street around 1955. 
 
 

 
The 1900 Sanborn map shows the site of the current house as vacant.  The French Legation is shown at 

the bottom of the map, just to the right of the scale. 
 
 



 

 
The 1935 Sanborn map shows the house with its current configuration.  There are no changes shown on 

the 1962 map  
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 


